EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING AGENDA
November 14, 2023 at 9:00 a.m.
Carson Valley Swim Center

1600 Hwy 88, Minden, Nevada
Pursuant to Chapter 241 of the Nevada Revised Statutes, the East Fork Swimming Pool District hereby notifies
all interested parties that the Board of Trustees will conduct business of the district as noted below.

o st ok o sl ok ok oo ok ok sk sk ok ok sk ok sk sk ok skeosk st sk s stk ok stk ok stk ok sk ok sk sk sk ok sk sk ke sk sk ok sk sk sk sk ok sk ok ok sk ok ok ok ok ok sk ok sk sk sk sk sk ok ok o sk ok ok skeok sk skoskosk sk sk sk sk skokskok ok
9:00am Call to Order and Recognition of Quorum
PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action Can be Taken)

At this time, public comment will be taken on those items that are within the jurisdiction and control of the
Board of Trustees. Public Comment is limited to 3 minutes per speaker.

If you are going to comment on a specific agenda item scheduled for action, please do so when that item is opened
for public comment. Please identify yourself and sign in on the sign-up sheet. Do not offer comment until
acknowledged by the Chair.

APPROVAL OF AGENDA

The Board of Trustees reserves the right to take items in a different order to accomplish business in the most
efficient manner; to combine two or more agenda items for consideration, and; to remove items from the agenda
or delay discussion relating to items on the agenda.

CONSENT AGENDA

[tems appearing on the Consent Agenda are items that can be adopted with one motion and vote unless an item is
pulled for discussion by a Trustee or a member of the public. Members of the public who wish to have a consent
item placed on the Administrative Agenda shall make that request during public comment at the beginning of the
meeting and state why they are making that request. When items are pulled from the Consent Agenda, they will
automatically be placed at the beginning of the Administrative Agenda or, may be continued until the next
meeting.

PUBLIC COMMENT
Motion to Approve Consent Calendar items la & 1b
la. For Possible Action. Approval of previous minutes from the October 19", 2023 Meeting.

1b. For Possible Action. Approval of general ledger cash balances, expenditures and investments through
October 31, 2023.



ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA

The Administrative Agenda will proceed as follows:
¢+ The Chairman will read the agenda title into the public record.
» Staff and/or Trustees will provide relevant information on the matter.

* The Board will discuss the item. Once that discussion is concluded, the Chair will take public comment
at three minutes per speaker.

*  Once public comment is completed, the Board may again discuss or proceed directly to vote.

**For agenda items that are listed as “Discussion Only” with no action, public comment is not legally required.
Public comment may be accepted by the Chair at their discretion.

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS PULLED FOR FURTHER DISCUSSION:

Any item pulled for discussion from the Consent Agenda will be heard at this time unless continued to a later
meeting.

Administrative Agenda

2. For Possible Action. Discussion and adoption of the 2022-2023 Audit Report. (Joan Sciarani-Blake CPA
from Arrighi Blake & Associates, LLC)

(U8 ]

Discussion Only. Discussion and update on the Capital Improvement Plan ongoing and possible future
projects.

4. For Possible Action. Discussion and possible action to approve design services contract with TSK
Architects for the Maintenance Storage Building Project in the amount of $39,840.

5s Discussion Only. Report from the Swim Center Director:
= User Attendance
= Staffing and Programming
= Marketing and Public Relations Information
= Employee Recognition
= Maintenance Updates
= Monthly Financial Update
= Correspondence

6. For Possible Action. Discussion and possible action on proposed agenda items for the December 21%,
2023 general meeting.

Adjournment

Copies of the agenda were posted at 3:00pm, Tuesday November 7™, 2023 at the following locations:
1. Carson Valley Swim Center, 1600 Highway 88, Minden, NV.

2. Douglas Co. Administration Building (Historic Courthouse) 1616 Eighth St., Minden, NV.

3. Douglas County Administration Office (Minden Inn) 1594 Esmeralda St., Minden, NV

4. Carson Valley Swim Center Web Site: www.cvswim.com

5. State of NV web site: https://notice.nv.gov/

Posted By: Signed:
Reasonable efforts will be made to accommodate disabled individuals desiring to attend the meeting. If you are

interested in materials call Sharon Thompson at 775-392-4063 24 hours in advance so that arrangements may be
made.




EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
AGENDA ACTION SHEET
Agenda Item # la
Title: Approval of the General Meeting minutes from October 19", 2023
Background: These are the draft minutes from your previous meeting.
Funding: NA
Recommended Motion: Move to approve the General Meeting minutes from October 19", 2023
Trustee Action: Approved
Denied
No Action

Other




EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
GENERAL MEETING MINUTES
October 19, 2023 at 9:00 a.m.

Carson Valley Swim Center
1600 Hwy 88, Minden, Nevada

The Board of Trustees October 19", 2023 general meeting was called to order by Chairperson Sharon
DesJardins at 9:00 AM at the Carson Valley Swim Center, Minden. NV. Board members present were,
Vice Chairman Travis Lee, Doug Robbins, Frank Dressel and Trustee Teresa Duffy.

No Public Comment: Chairperson DesJardins recognized Allen Biaggi as a visitor.

AGENDA
Upon motion by Robbins to approve agenda, seconded by Dressel, the motion was unanimously approved.

No Public Comment
ok ok ok ok sk ok ok Sk ok ok sk ok 3k 3R 3K ok 3k ok 3k ok sk ok ok sk ok ok ok ok ok ok sk sk ok 3k 3k 3k 3K 3k ok ok 3 ok ok ok 3k ok 3k ok 3K 3K ok 3K 3K oK 3k 3K 3K ok 3K 3K oK ok %k 3K oK 3k 3K 3K 3k 3K 5k sk ok 5k sk ok 3K 3k ok 3k 3K oK %K K K k kK K

CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS

la. For possible action. Approval of previous minutes from the September 29", 2023 General
Meeting

1b.  For possible action. Approval of general ledger cash balances, expenditures, and investments
through September 30, 2023

Upon motion made by Dressel and seconded by Lee. The consent agenda items 1a & 1b were
unanimously approved.

No Public Comment

ADMINISTRATIVE AGENDA

2.

Discussion Only. Discussion and update on the Capital Improvement Plan ongoing projects
Chairperson DesJardins introduced item. Harris states that the ADA bathroom are 98% done.
Maintenance has a few things to complete such as replacing both doors and both set of locks. The Roof
Restoration is being done now. Robbins asked how many coats will they put on. McCullough states
there will be one primer coat and then the color coat. Harris states there is no estimated date of
completion because the job is so weather and temperature dependent. The other project we want to talk
about is replacing our toys in the activity pool. DesJardins went around and spoke to different vendors
so [ will turn the discussion over to her. Desjardins states that there were not as many vendors as |
thought I remembered from last year. A lot of the vendors were splash pad people but those splash pad
toys could be used in our facility. One vendor there had just created the splash pad/pool for the new
Royal Caribbean Line Ship. Harris states that many of the toys were for dry land and standing water.
Sharon collected many brochures from the conference, at least 7 or 8 and I have them in my office for
anyone who is interested in looking at them. Take them home and bring them back. Lee states that’s
great he looks forward to looking at the brochures. He states that also contacted a company and has
requested a catalog from them.

No Public Comment

Discussion Only. Discussion on design concepts and budget for the “Eastside Expansion Project”

consisting of expanding the lobby and concession storage area.

Chairperson DesJardins introduced item. Harris states that we received 4 options. Option 1 was out of
the question, option 2 we liked the roof lines, option 3 we like the entrance way and option 4 is really a

combination of all of the ideas. Harris states that option 4 has less air flow and the ADA doors are such



that the 1* set will close before the 2™ set opens. Robbins states how will we keep it warm in the winter
and cold in the summer. McCullough states that it will be conditioned space. Lee states the
functionality of the flow on option 4, the only doors are going in, is it all open all the way to the side
space. Harris states that it’s all open and will still be able to use the columns for bulletin boards. Harris
states that option | was priced out months ago. McCullough states that price was 1.2M. Harris states
that the 1.2M probably won’t change much for option 4. Chairperson DesJardins called on Biaggi for
comment. Biaggi wanted to follow up on a question that was asked by Lee. What is that wall going
from the entrance doors to the existing building? Harris states that’s to have a closed area to stop the
wind tunnel. After much discussion, the Trustees decided on option 4. Harris states she will go forward
with the design team on option 4 and will come to the Trustees next month with the new pricing and
have a larger discussion.

Public Comment:

Discussion Only. Report from the Swim Center Director.
CVSC October 2023 Director’s Report

User Attendance: See board binder documents.

Sept 2022 Attendance was 9,610. Sept 2023 Attendance was 8,898

Programming, Staffing and Training:
e Molly Meet had over 350 registered swimmers — all went well.
e Special events being planned for Oct — pumpkins, haunted house

M

Maintenance Department has a Part-time vacancy and we are advertising internally —qualified candidates
Leadership Team (Director and Supervisors) meet monthly to plan and discuss CVSC programming & staffing.
Part-time employee evaluations have been completed.
Monthly In-Service Training/Meeting was conducted by all supervisors.
Session, Drop-In and Private swim and dive lessons are combined numbers and classes have been successful (see
attached #'s)
Water Aerobics Class attendance is staying steady at 35+ participants in the morning classes. Evening classes are
smaller but well likes and attended.
arketing and Public Relations:
Website has been redesigned and the district has received positive feedback.
Social media exposure, information sharing and flyers: Facebook & Instagram updates (Sarah & Catherine).
Website updates (Justin, Paul, Sharon), Google Business updates (Shannon), Alignable updates (Shannon)
Publications: Carson Valley Business Directory, Getaway Reno/Tahoe Area, Best of CV, Almanac, Record Courier.
CGI Marketing Group continues to do a good job managing our online reputation with Google, Yelp (Shannon)
Phone Message updates (Sherrie)

Water Aerobics Coordinator (Deanna) is emailing staff and patrons on our internal water aerobics list to keep up-
to-date on schedule or procedure changes.

Employee Recognition:

°
M

Employee of the Month: TBD

aintenance Updates:
Roof coating project has begun.
ADA Bathroom remodels have been completed — positive feedback but hard to keep white floor tile clean.
LED lights in the Natatorium have been replaced. Softer light with required amount of lumens. Less energy.
Indoor Emergency Lights replaced.

Daily, weekly, monthly and annual maintenance projects and asset management are being completed... excel
document updated by Maintenance Supervisor and Director regularly

Updating and improving the data information in Reserve Analyst (Asset Management Program).

Monthly Financial: See board binder documents.
Correspondence: See board binder documents (if applicable)

No Public Comment



5. For Possible Action. Discussion and possible action on proposed agenda items for the Tuesday
November 14™, 2023 meeting
CIP Update
Eastside Expansion
Activity Pool Toys
Audit
Thermal Discussion

Upon motion made by Robbins and seconded by Dressel to adjourn meeting. Motion to adjourn meeting was
unanimously approved.



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT

Agenda Item # 1b

Title:

Background:

Funding:

Recommended Motion:

Trustee Action:

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

AGENDA ACTION SHEET

For possible action. Approval of general ledger cash balances,
expenditures and investments through October 31%, 2023.

NRS requires local government entities governing boards to
approve expenditures for their entity and to report cash balances as
well as investments. It is important for Trustees to be aware of the
financial status of the District.

NA

Move to approve the report of general ledger cash balances,
expenditures and investments through October 31, 2023.

Approved

Denied

No Action

Other



9:14 AM EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT

11/06/23 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of October 31, 2023
Oct 31, 23
ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings
101 - WELLS FARGO CHECKING ACCT. 169,905.60
108 - CASH ON HAND 850.00
112-4 - LOCAL GOV'T INVESTMENT POOL 3,226,122.67
112-5 - LOCAL GOV'T POOL OPERATING 191,381.32
Total Checking/Savings 3,588,259.59
Accounts Receivable
121 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 3,108.00
Total Accounts Receivable 3,108.00
Other Current Assets
12100 - INVENTORY
115 - CHEMICALS INVENTORY 11,530.41
120 - MERCHANDISE INVENTORY 3,706.62
125 - FOOD INVENTORY 2,051.46
Total 12100 - INVENTORY 17,288.49
130 - Prepaid Expense 3,919.84
170-4 - DELIQUENT TAX REC 40,622.55
Total Other Current Assets 61,830.88
Total Current Assets 3,663,198.47
Fixed Assets
150 - POOL EQUIPMENT 152,279.48
155 - CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 299,743.63
156 - LAND IMPROVEMENTS 491,894.25
157 - BUILDING & IMPROVEMENT 14,337,233.16
158 - EQUIPMENT 1,312,376.79
160 - ACCUMMULTED DEPRECIATION -9,962,354.85
175 - LAND APN#1320-30-411-005 1,353,232.09
Total Fixed Assets 7,984,404.55
Other Assets
171 - DEFERRED PENSION OUTFLOWS 410,899.00
Total Other Assets 410,899.00
TOTAL ASSETS 12,048,502.02
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
201 - ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 168,050.46
Total Accounts Payable 168,050.46
Credit Cards
202 - CITI VISA CREDIT CARD 9,765.14
Total Credit Cards 9,765.14
Other Current Liabilities
200 - PAYROLL LIABILITIES
221-1 - ACCRUED PAYROLL 51,916.80
221-2 - ACCRUED PAYROLL TAXES 9,545.51
229 - SUTA 600.09
234-3 - Aflac 329.64
Total 200 - PAYROLL LIABILITIES 62,392.04

Page 1



9:14 AM EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT

11/06/23 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of October 31, 2023
Oct 31, 23
218 - ACCRUED VESTED VAC PAY 24,501.11
219 - OPEB LIABILITY 23,468.00
235 - ACCRUED WORKMANS COMPENSATION -15,952.40
236 - NOTE PAYABLE - ZION 484,000.00
Total Other Current Liabilities 578,408.75
Total Current Liabilities 756,224.35
Long Term Liabilities
220 - NET PENSION LIABILITY 1,126,751.00
225 - DEFERRED PENSION INFLOWS 179,203.00
Total Long Term Liabilities 1,305,954.00
Total Liabilities 2,062,178.35
Equity ;
349 - RETAINED EARNINGS 6,273,238.34
351-1 - FUND BALANCE 1,452,260.17
355 - CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL 1,648,952.81
Net Income 611,872.35
Total Equity 9,986,323.67
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 12,048,502.02

Page 2



%6¥ 0€ 10°08T°S¥ 00°TF1°69 10°L96°1 00°628'1Z 66°198'6} 00°9bY'S 81'G10'G
%LL €T TI'LSE T 006681 crses 0020'% 88'L¥S'E 00219 16'665
%ST 9¢ YT TISTI 00°8T9°61 ¥T91¢ 00'ZeH'L 9LSILL 0008+t £9'ELE')
%LSLE P SELTE 00°5£8°0¢ o ves 00'%£0'0Z 95'660'6 1 00'6L6'E Fr AV KA
%61 LE €L°881°918 00°£89°S0E°1 CLLLTTI 00'92L'10G Lz 86v'68Y 00'722'L6 0Z'€06'Z6
%L 8T 00700T°L1 00°000°%T 00°€PEl 00€kL's 00°008'9 00°EvL'E 00°00Z'€
%PS TH TT IV 9L 00°0L0°CET (8L°L18°LT) 00'88L'8E 8/'509'95 00'658'8 Y Ora'zL
i0/AIQ# 0L°6L1 - 0L6L1 $ 000 0L'6LL- 000 08'9%-
%000 0000£°¢S 00°00€°S - $ 000 000 000 000
%LY'T9 T0LSL'6 00°000°9T (86°26'9) $ 000SL'6 86Z¥Z'9L 00'12€'L 72e58'L
%000 0000T°1 00°00T'1 - $ 000 000 000 000
%IST1 00705191 00°0ST°81 00°825 $ 00'829'Z 00°00L'2 00296 00°G6S
%IL01 00°ST1°E 00°008°€ 00'929 $ 007100t 00°6LE 0011z 00052
%91°6Z [E€I¥T 00°666°1 LE'90% $ 00'8¥0'L 69'18S 00'L6¥ 18'9€1
%VETh 0S°89Z°1 00°00Z°T 05°60% $ 00'1¥E'L 05'1E6 00565 05'1€6
%8€°08 FI99L T 00°000°6 (9g'e¥5) $ 00069'9 99°€eZ'L 00'€09'2 €TLIB'E
%0S°LT 80°€PL 00°620°1 (z6'981) $ 0066 26'182 00'v¥ 86'GZ
%38 €E 00'866°C 007005t 00°€S $ 00635} 00'205°} 00686 00409
%EG 88 LT SHL 0070059 (e2'161'€) $ 00°€95'T SLYSL'S 00961 68228
%0791 00°9L9°1 00°000°C 00'8€€ $ 00299 00'v2e 000 000
%CE 0F 69°800°L1 007005°8T (1£°828') $ 00€99'S LEL6Y 1L 00'LLE €p'520't
%C9° €Y LIOYT'S 00°00€°6 (egoez't) $ 00628'C £8'650'F 00't2E £8°L¥8
%PS 81 0L’ 159 007008 0L'6L $ 00822 oe'syl 000 000
%0E ¥ PO IFTL 007000°€1 (9g'ez0'e) $ 00°GEL'Z 9£'85L'S 00656 6LL48'L
%LT9E FS 886 L1Y 00°00L 89 (S1°9Z£61) 91'959'29Z 10'0EE'8YE 9L’ L6E'0F Zr6eL'ee
%0E T 18449'22 00'05Z'6€ €1°600'€ Z6'L19'61 61'209'9L 82°0.6'L 8GZEY'L
%0E T 18'L¥9'22 00'05Z'6€ £4°600'¢ Z6'L19'61 61°209'01 82'0.6'L 8GZEF'L
%IL'S SPILY 007008 SYotdy 00°Got 55'82 006t 000
%E1'6T 78°688 00°0SZ°1 L' €6 Z6'65F 8L'¥9e 8Zvr 2£'89
%S89 89'L¥P'S 00°05Z°01 (ZE'v88) 00'816'C ZET08'Y 00'¥6¥ 0L€28
%9811 98'TH8°S1 00°0ST°LT 98°19¢°¢€ 00°69.'t} L0V LL 00°/8¢€'} 95°0vS
%09 9E CE9ETOTY 00°056°€ZL (88°5€€°20) 80'897°L8T 0T TE6'F9T ¥0T9ETH 00°T91°FE
%00°0 - 00700581 (SHeeTL) 00'Z56'9 S¥'182- 00'256'9 000
%¥9°6¢€ OL'vLETL 00700502 (0L°682) 00'GLY'8 oe'sel's 00698 0F'959
%98 1t SL'989°1€ 00°00S¥S (5£919%9) 00'0£+'62 STELB'TT 00'292'2 00°508'L
%91°LE 06'¥L196€ 00°0SF'0£9 (86°561°8) 20°LLY'ZVE 01'SLZ'vEZ v0'612'28 09°002'1E
195png jo Suimipway  198pNY [Bnuuy  DUBLIEA (LA 195png LA €207 PO-Ing y8png €202 10O

% SE [€10], (LA 133png [enuuy

HONVUNSNI HLTVAH - ¥19

INTWAOTIIWANN ALVLS - €19

TAVOIAQAN - 119

ALIINOAS TVIODOS - 109

SAOVM ® SHIYVIVS - 009

SASNALXH q4VOd - 665
SASNIAIXH TTOHAVd

JALLVULSININGY % TVIANTD [¥10L
LHOHS/MIAO HSVD - 08L
STHA HALOA DA - +69
SHDUAVHD IWIALSAS AULNIT - €69
SADYVHOI MNVA - T69
ASNAIXH ONLLNNODIYV - 169
ASNAIXA TVOAT - 069
AOVATIN/INTNSANIINITT OLNYV - £89
STVII - 189
ASNAIXA TIAVYL - 089
SNOILJIYDSINS/sANd - 199
NOILVONAA %® SUVNIINGS - 099
SAI'TddNS AD1440 - §+9
NOLLVDNAA ANV ONINIVHL TOOd - 19
LI - THVALAOS - 7€9
ASNAIXA TVIHOLINYC - 1€9
ADVISOd - 0£9
ONLINIYJd/ONISILYFAAY - 679
JALLVILSINIAAY % TVHIANAD
asuadxyg
J1J01 ] S5015)
SDOD [e10L
a10S SAo09 40 1S0D w0l
ADVII0dS A00A - $9§
SAI'TddNS AOOA - 098
ASNAIXT ASIANVHOUIN - S5€
ASNAIXT dOOA - 0sS
108 SAo09 40 1S0D
PIOS spooD Jo }s0D)
Juwodu] [B10 L
JINODNI INVHD 86F
ASIANVHOUIN - L6F
aood - ve¥

SAAA HASN - £0F
awoduy

asmadxypwoduy A1euipiQ



%LELY (9L°€95'p1) 00°+TLTOL 8S°67S 791 1+'€8S IS 0T 0F6'€19 (Z8°STH 6t) 6S'ST8'L
%L 61 01'6LF 1S ] 00°0TLT06'T 06'0TS°€TT 00°060°02T°1 11'8EF'€PP'1 00'860°01 €9 Z8T11T
(00°0£9°L) g E =
(00°0£9°L) (00°0£9°L) 000 000 000 000 000
%EL 6F 01'601°65F°1 00°0TLT06'T 06'0TS€TT 00°060°0ZC°1 11'8EV E€Ft'L 00°860°0Z1 €9T8T11T
000 62ZLL- 000 000
%61'¥ST (9L°798°¥7) 00°5Z1°91 9L°070°6€ 00°L¥6'} 9.°286'0F 00°€65 8Y'€Z8'6
%65 8% 98'1L6'E8F T 007S65°988°T  #1°08FF8I 00°EPL'8LZ L v1'€29'207'L 00'S05'641 L1'BSY'L0Z
%0L LE (98°7+099F°1)  (007966°661°T)  (TE166°09) (65°905°89L) (16°L6+°6T8) (z8°€75°691)  (90°LSH'E0T)
%9¢ LE 0F 1£9°€88°1 00°969°+88°C  (L1'S99°1+) SL'TO1°9€0°] T6LTRLLO'T 8S°C16°60T 8+'981°9ET
%EE EE 00°0¥T 671 00°S1L°8TS = 2E'8€2'9L) Ze'8ET'9LL 85'650'vY 85'650'FY
%IL St 6 H8°78T 00°0£0°12¢ (86'S1€°4S) £+'698°€81 14°S81°8ET 00°6£9°8T 89°16L°9S
%Lt 69 SI'L¥8 00°SLLT (8'+98) 00'€90'} §8°226't 000 66781
%LT 9T 8C°868°S 00°000°8 8SHT 0092L'2 oL 00°0%€ 09vrL'L
%LLES 0t'859°C 00°0SL°S (09°18T°1) 00°018'4 09°160'E 00°9%¥ 9Z'60%'L
%91°SL 98°796°1 0070008 (F1°L6ET) 000¥9'L ¥1°220'9 00'SL¥ 95°052'¢
%88°9¢ 0'8L0°1 00°00€°C (96'099) 00°19L 96° LYl 00'LSH 000
%60°ST LS9€8°S LS 96L°T1 00°80€ 00'892'€ 000962 0018 00°0%L
%61 TS 89'6T°T 00°0£8°% (Z€'8L9°T) 00258 2e°6es'T 00'812 0202
%¥8 'St 80°€99°09 00°000°Z11 (Z6'COL YD) 00'€€9'92 Z6'9EE'LS 00'99L'y SO'ELB'LL
%EP 8E £9°720°0% 007000°59 £9°786° 00°096'6Z LELI6'PT 00°Z6L'E 69'058'0L
%007001 = €7 €SP 9 - SY'ESh'98 SYESH'OE 000 000
%CC 0F SL6TH 651 00°00L°99C (ST°606°97) 00°'19€'08 S2°0/Z'10L 00'¥£8'81 ze9le'Le
%IE0F £P'T6v'8S 00°000°86 (LS 18T°81) 00922'1Z 16°105'6€ 00'866'S SH0L8'0L
%L8 61 08'TF0T 00°SL0°F 08°1T 00'%50'2 0Z'2£0'T 00'£20' 01910’k
%1€ 6€ SL'6L6™9 00700S°11 CL799L 00°282'G SZ'02S'y 00°0S0't 0Z'1£6
%ST 0F 18'859°¢8 00°SZ0°0¥I (6156°8) 00°ZIY' LY 61'99€'95 00°069'6 L071Z'El
%I¥ e TELY 00700£°9 (ys6L) 008802 52912 00'22S 0S°ZYS
%9€'6€ 0S'€TIy 0070089 (05°Z8¢€) 007622 05'9.9'2 00'£85 00°'9€9
%859 CE 65°780°660°T 00 188°10L°T  65°89%°0€ 00°292'LE9 1+'864'909 00'85€'8Z1L 8L ¥6¥'ZZL
10/A1QH# (0t'L66) (0t°L66) 000 0’266 000 08'068'
i0/AIQ# 000 - - 000 000 000 000
io/AIQ# 000 - - 000 000 000 000
i0/AIQ# (009¢0°D) = (009£0°1) 000 00°9€0'L 000 05'vEZ
%Tr T 09°S0¥°CE 00°9L8°T 09°LISE 00'88Z'¥L 0¥’ 0L 0L 00Z.5'E 092192
%S0°LT S89EV 0€1 00 +18°8LI S8OIETI 00°889'65 SL'LLE'SY 00ZL6'EL pLZEE'LL
128png Jo Swmeway  193png [EnUuyY  DUELEA (LA  193png dLA €2 PO-Inr 133png £20T PO

% S€ [€30] A LA 133png fenuuy

woduy 13N
uoau] JIYPQ 1PN

asuadxy JaylIQ [BI0L
asuadxj 3sa193u] . 68

suadxy J3Y10

WU JIYI(Q) [BIOL
HWODNI HIHLO - 66%
HIWODNI LSHUILNI - I6¥

WHHOTVA AV - ¥ 10V
Wodu] JIYIO
asuadxjg/awoduy JIyYlQ

Jwodu] AreuipaQ 19N
asuadxy jero],

ASNAJIXAT NOILVIOTHJAA - 058

SNOILVYA4O T00d I#10L
INTWIINOT TIVIAS - 949
SIWHOAINN - ++9
SAI'TddNS - €49
ALAAVS - TF9
STALLNADNI JFAOTdNT - 09
ADNVNILNIVIN AdVOSANYVT - 9£9
TVINIY INTINJINOT - $£9
YIVdIY ® ADONVNILNIVIA - ££9
STVDINAHD - 879
ADNVUSNI - €79

SALLITLLA [B10L
SVO TVHNLVN - 979
FAMTS - §T9
HALVM - #79
DIMLOAT - TT9
ASNAIXT AINOHIATAL - 179
ADVEAVD - 619
SALLITLLA
SNOLLVHAdO0 100d
SASNAIXT TIOYAV [EI0L
NOLLVOVA @aNyIDV - £-0¢9
SAXVL TIOHAVd GANYIDV - T-0$9
SADVAL QANUIIV - 1-0+9
SINAWLSNIAV XVL TIOUAVd - 6£9
NOLLVSNAJWOD SNVINMHOM - LI9

SYHAd - S19
(panunuo))



9L'%S5'SL 1ejoL

U0 JeWLWEH [8UUN 1|66 902 ¥IVd3Y ' IONYNILNIVIN - EE9) 5001 007

INN 8%OA POOM[EE'GE HIvd3d 8 IONYNILNIVIN - €9 Kiddng epeAaN Waisam

(7453 3SN3dX3 0004 - 05§ HEWIEM

BAB8IS ZUBND/SaJIM dWe DAN 8Jnssald PAN[00'9EL e HIVd3Y 2 SONYNILNIVIN - €€9) OT10AN

5J31108]00051 '€ HIVd3Y ® SONVNILNIVIN - €69 EVEENE

sbeqieo/isieM|0Z €251 HSYY1 ® ¥3LVAM - 29 UBPUIW JO UMOL

S|eaIWayd| 69800 STVOINIHO - 829 uj Auedwiod Jaydiey L

8] bupnpal g3 sJ0jdepe 55aJd Jeddoo SMogje 981b0ap G VOZ. JO) AdoueD) | 08'€ZE HIvd3x 8 SONVYNILINIVIN - EE9 asnoy Aiddng|
66701 SNOILJIEOSENS/S3NA - 199 Knods

sdeD wims'salBboo |0/ ez 3SIONYHOY3IW - 655 opeads

S¥'0.8°0L SVO TWHNLYN - 929 SVO 1SIMHLNOS

(€202 JU0D SE|lEq) SUIPJErseq/Uoduareq| 00 08E 3SN3dX3 13AVEL - 089 SBUIIIY JSBMLANOS

S9AS buidea0og/Sy3d/IoiAed £202 995 [00°0ZE ISNIdX3 ONILNNODIY - L69 Ul 'sedineg Bumeog eusis

S@84 Jodlly aoye |/ouay 'abealiy’juoD VdHN selled 1o walpsad|oL vy STV3N - 189 SulpJefsag UoJeus
0S0LE SIY3N - 189 SWIEH UOUUBYS

YLEL 3ISN3dX3 0004 - 055 3 SIeS SUBMUDS

JUOD VXN SEelfeq Joj Walpiad [05°0LE SIV3N - 189 vodusieq yeses

{uosuaaa1S'"BuUN'd €202 AGN]) 83U8J8juod A1|P2 529 3ISN3dX3 13AVL - 089 SI810H AT

JUaA3 UsamolleH| Ly /2 S3MddNS - E¥9 sfeey

50daQ 1921i0 1o} $894|05 vEZ

SINIWISNray Xv.1 TIOHAVd - 6€9

30/A153 [[0JREd SH00EH2IND

YEB# £202 PO[90'LY

SONVENSNI HLTV3H - #19)

welibaid siysuag seakojdw3 oljgnd

abeyd Buwnsay Ayuow|c6's

1I-38YMLIOS -Z€8

1eA AN J8jsod

(UaWwdinbe) Jleday JO JUBWAIS | #Z €61

HIvd3Y 8 3ONYNILNIVIA - €€9

abersod diuS aledid|

85U0dse) BJedald Adllod Yay Yodal JIPNE Joj 15enbal MeIAeN | 00052

3SNIdX3 VO3 - 069

P11 'BIagsio4 g MsUSO)]

(ez0z deg) @84 @oneg AYuow[ L0562 3SNIdX3 INOHdIT3L - 129 ONI 'YINOO
(€20z 10) selfeq 3UsIaue)) YJUN|6¥ ZELE 3SNIIX3 13AVYL - 089 S[8I0H IUWQ
L0VIZEL OI¥10313 - 229 ABisuz AN
Bunuudisbui3 (000 ALIIVS - Z¥9 paUUag 9j0JIN
suzebew sinsay ADOB|00° 675 ONLLNII/ONISILEIAQY - 629 dnoJS SMaN epeAeN
6615 dIvd3y ® SONVNILINIVIN - €€9 OSH
Bunuud Jabui[ 000 ALIIVS - 29 USLJILS Weul
(£20Z 990-PO) se9 Jamas KD [0L'910'L Y3IM3S - 629

dnyoeg PnoiDI|z5's

LI-3HVMILIOS - ZE9

JOLISIg Uonejiues ejjiAJaupies-uspuin
dI0D YOSOLOIN

PUNOJUIOD JUiorajeidua | 8BuUH /766 HIvd3d B IONVNILNIVIN - €£9 SHI8N

sabepueg|zy ze AL3IVS - 2r9 s81/ddns [edipaiN UOSSaXoN

J8A0D X0 PAILBIBM[GL'9SL T HIVd3d 2 JONVYNILNIVIN - E€9 sopenby Ujoour

8|qeD/M J10SUSS JH0 (£20g 2unl) Sepenbug JEsind SSaUpJEH WNIS|eD88) BUL|D'PaY 10USUd [ LT BYL'S SIVOIW3HD - 829[ Louy
deos puey nuy UEBppWeod| 10/, TVISOLINYT - LES[ UONNGUISIC] SENUSBIY

(lemausy LIW3) HoduaAeq'S[00°0ZE NOILYDNA3 8 SHYNINSS - 099 S3 wedw|

(£z0z deg) sJsuudysiaidod v Joj 89} AdoD 9L 99 S311ddNS 321440 - 6¥9 swayshg ssauisng euals ybiH

supdwnd{00'629 S31ddNS - £¥9) 19pn0 fso019

JaUe3|] AuIdI0|g [BULIN[aUBd IIEGDAIBA X23YD 3uo) |leg| /G oz AYIHOLINYT - LES Jabuiess

|emauay A|YIUol|66 62 LIF-FHVYMLIOS - 2€9 Appeq 09

ZTESB'L

SIOYVYHD WILSAS AHLNI - €69

suswied [eqo|9

(wooy 13x207 s,uawiop) 108 Axoda/m 3|11 ZXZ JO JST ||EISUI-aYJIedayRowaqa| 00002

HIVd3d '8 SONVYNILNIVIN - €E9

du| 'BumesailL |lyood

Vg J001d JadLIEL 195008 SAUQ KfSNH 001 SPIIS JopUND J0IsISay Wid J9HORS 9sUodsay Aouablows o6 3oauD ¥o8a |20 €LE HIVd3d ® IONVYNILNIVIN - €€9 Keq3
Buo? -suepusdaq (1)/14(2) £2 190 83ueINSU| WIedH |85 GIE'S FONYHNSNI HITVIH - ¥19 PUSI] 100403 Kunod sejbrioq

(€202 1°0) 89uaiajuoD selled|00'ss ISNIIXT 13AVAL - 089 2INIBS oW XeL MJ]

£202 120 10eAu0D| 00 0r2L FONVNIINIVAN 3dVOSANYT - 9€9 Buideaspue Jejs Hasaq|

(eZ0z 1O'degBnyuny 091500) abeajin)| L. oF IOVITIWLNIWISHNEWIZY OLNY -€89 10qqy euuead|

YdE Dy USAOM B/EXE OJd ISM[96 22 dIVd3x 8 SONVYNILNIVI - €€9 BuoT pineg

(1995 ajes) ApueDd Usamo|eH '[BJo)UBT 'S2ACID)'saIIddNS pood'pood |8y 859 09}
Alnewea| |6t LvZ 3SN3dX3 INOHJ313L - L2s SS8UISNG JAYEUD

Ty 30 ¢) Aousby pv XeN|[GLEZE | ONILNIYJ/ONISILEIAQY - 629 SUOREIIUNWWOY |9

1UaA3 usamolieH | 0002 S3ANddNS - €79 UIPBAA BUUBYIED)

Buuape Alug esfoidw3 Buiusans sieams 97|88°6Z5 SWHOSINA - #¥9] subis AajleA uosied

ysiA ayis ALAUOW|00°'GLZ 3SN3JX3 ONILNNODIY - 169 D711 BURUNCOoY ABIIEA UOSIED

sjuLad 1004|0019 AL3JVS - Zv9| S80MBS UBWNH pue yiieaH A uosied

(€20 1P0) oueinsu| dinb3/esea JeidoD |0z 202

JVINSY LINIWJINDS - ¥€9)

$891AJ9G [EUBUl] UOULED)

(suedpogel) duind Jiedey (0L gLl 'L

HIvd3Y '® SONVYNILNIVIN - E€9

202 89ualsuo] 4OV |00 Y

NOLLYONQA3 8 SHVYNIWIS - 099

oul "Aaqlin-umoig

50.1d 9Enby JO UOED0SSY

TBUUE N BIOWET Y SefRld W WBIH D) [00 ZEL

AL33VS - 29

SS0.5) pay UBJUSWY|

paRaniseq SI0eLIN200[0'29

S311ddNS 321440 - S¥9

DUl ‘UondnIISaq JUsWNd0Q UBDUSWY

BS'De|4 BpRABN'JUBAT UsBMo||EH asIpUBYDIaN WEIGaM JoliuojIaIndwod "saljddng o0 ‘sellddng jeojiuer'aoueusjuley saljddns pooj'uondudsans| #+6°0BE'2 uozZewy|
pinbr] epixoig uogqieD[6£°'860C SIVIIWIHD - 829 SYOMIV|

PI2M P|0] @n|/13|114'au0diis Bupjine) 'sianupmaias Relds ijjesa’des) a8e) peyeneH|68°0Z1 dIvd3d 8 3ONVYNILNIVI - £€9 eJeMpJeH 20y

1epoway Aqgo Joj sjud(v0's ONLLNINJ/ONISILH3AAY - 629 Bunuud 3gv

sbeg ysel| abie7'siaul] paxepn'Jaded 181101 IOy [8MOL UOROW £t 02 IVINOLINYP - LES [edlwayd -y

ouRW | unowy

Juno2oy




EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
AGENDA ACTION SHEET
Agenda Item #2
Title: For Possible Action. Discussion and adoption of the 2022-2023 Audit
Report. (Joan Sciarani-Blake CPA from Arrighi Blake & Associates, LLC)
Background: The East Fork Swimming Pool District Board of Trustees annually reviews
and adopts the Audit report and findings.
Funding: NA
Recommended
Motion: Move to approve the adoption of the 2022-2023 Audit Report.
Trustee Action: Approved
Denied
No Action

Other



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
JUNE 30, 2023



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
JUNE 30,2023

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
On Financial Statements

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
Changes in Net Position
Statement of Cash Flows
Notes to Financial Statements

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and
Related Ratios
Schedule of the District’s Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability
Schedule of the District’s Contributions

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Schedule of Revenues, Expenses, and Change in
Net Position — Budget and Actual

COMPLIANCE SECTION
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting on Compliance
and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards
Independent Accountant’s Report
on Nevada Revised Statute 354.6241

AUDITOR’S COMMENTS
Statute Compliance
Progress on Prior Year Statute Compliance
Prior Year Recommendations
Current Year Recommendations

PAGE NO.

10-24

25

26
27

28

29-30

31

32
32
32
39



ARRIGHI, BLAKE
& ASSOCIATES, LLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Trustees of East Fork Swimming Pool District
Minden, Nevada

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activity East Fork Swimming Pool
District (the “District™) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the business-type activities as of June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent the District and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for

twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise
substantial doubt shortly thereafler.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that,

individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.



In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

e Lxercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include
examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.

o  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

e  Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise
substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we
identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s Discussion
and Analysis, the Schedule of Changes in Total OPEB Liability and Related Ratios, Schedule of the District’s
Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability and the Schedule of the District’s Contributions on pages 3-6 and
pages 25-27, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods
of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated November 3, 2023 on our
consideration of East Fork Swimming Pool District’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and other matters. The purpose of that report is to
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

November 3, 2023

Yerington, Nevada R zé«i!"%\ﬁ\q ¢ Aesccistes Lic



East Fork Swimming Pool District
Management Discussion and Analysis
For the year ended June 30, 2023

This section of the East Fork Swimming Pool District annual financial report presents a
discussion and analysis of the District’s financial performance comparing the fiscal years
cnded June 30, 2023 and 2022. We encourage readers to read this information in
conjunction with the financial statements and notes to gain a more complete picture of the
information presented. The District oversees the Carson Valley Swim Center.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic

financial statements. The District's basic financial statements are comprised of the
following:

Statement of Net Assels - provides a picture of the assets and liabilities of the District at the

end of its fiscal year, along with the difference between assets and liabilities, which is
referred to as net assets.

Statement of Revenues, FExpenses and Changes in Net Assets - shows the revenues and
expenses that resulted from the District's operations during the fiscal year, regardless of
when cash is received or paid, or how those results of operations affected net assets of the

District.
Statement of Cash Flows - presents a summary of cash balances at the beginning of the

period, increases and decreases in cash during the period, and the balance of the District's
cash at the end of the period.

The financial statements also include notes that explain some of the information in the
financial statements and provide more detailed data.

Financial Highlights

The chart below provides a summary of the basic financial statements:



East Fork Swimming Pool District
Management Discussion and Analysis
For the year ended June 30, 2023 (Continued)

Net Assets
Assets:
Cash and other asscts
Capital assets

Total assets
Deferred pension outflows

Liabilities:

Current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities
Deferred pension inflows
Net Position;

Invested in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

Changes in Net Position
Revenues:
User fees and sales
Ad valorem taxes
Grant revenue
Other income
Interest earnings

Total revenue

Expenses:
Operaling expense

Change in net position

District

June 30 Totals (000’s)

2023 2022
$ 3,010 $ 2,048
7,008 7,935
10,918 9,083
411 264
256 211
1,520 1,053
1,776 1,264
179 648
7,908 7,935
1,466 400
$ 9,374 $ 8,335
543 553
2,904 2,668
14 38
2 -
67 4
3,530 3,263
2,491 2,191
$ 1,039 $ 1,072




East Fork Swimming Pool District
Management Discussion and Analysis
For the year ended June 30, 2023
(Continued)

1. The District’s investment in banks, certificates of deposits, and the State of Nevada
Local Investment Government Pool was $ 2,941,149 as of Junc 30, 2023. This
compares to a total of $1,984,345 as of June 30, 2022.

2. Revenues from user fees and merchandise sales were $543,210 during fiscal year
2022-2023. This compares to $553,125 for 2021-2022 for a decrease of $9,915.

3. The District’s 2022-2023 total operating costs included $1,294,790 for personnel
and $734,622 for services and supplies for a total of $2,029,412 compared to the
prior fiscal year of $1,800,981.

4. The District’s operating expenses of $2,491,043 came in under the approved budget
operating expense of $2,611,292.

Operating Fund Ad Valorem Tax Rate
The tax rate for fiscal year 2022-2023 is 0.1300.

Capital Assets

The Nevada Department of Taxation requires the District to have a five-year capital
improvement plan. The District knows that many capital expense projects will need to be
done in future years but the exact year that each project will be done in is unknown. At the
same time, unexpected capital projects may occur that were not anticipated.

The District completed the ADA Bathroom Remodel and New Filter replacement

projects during the fiscal year,

e The District completed the ADA Bathroom Remodel and New Filter projects
during the fiscal year.



East Fork Swimming Pool District
Management Discussion and Analysis
For the year ended June 30, 2023
(Continued)

Summary

During the 2022-2023 fiscal year, the Carson Valley Swim Center was maintained in a
clean and like new condition while offering a wide range of aquatic programs and extensive
hours of operation will adhering to the pandemic mandates set lorth by Governor Sisolak.
Attendance for the year was approximately 87,000. There were some significant variations
in expenses compared to the budget driven by COVID-19 safety protocols that were put
into place. Capital improvement plans for 2022-2023 were used with existing funds. The
vacant land purchase was completed using a combination of existing funds and the issuance
of a single General Obligation- Medium Term Bond. Your Carson Valley Swim Center is
financially sound and operating cost effectively, while providing a first-class water
recreational experience for arca residents.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of East Fork Swimming
Pool District’s finances for those interested. Questions concerning any of the information
provided in this report or requests for additional financial information can be addressed to
the East Fork Swimming Pool District, P.O. Box 1972, Minden, Nevada or by calling (775)
782-8841.

Shannon Harris
Director



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2023
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and investments $ 2,941,149
Accounts receivable 3,108
Taxes receivable 40,622
Prepaid expense 7,840
Inventory 17,073
Total Current Assets 3,009,792
Noncurrent Assets:
Capital assets, net 7,908,560
Total Assels 10,918,352
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pension outflows 410,899
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable 60,141
General obligation medium term bond 116,000
Accrued payroll and benefits 62,572
Compensaled absences 17,242
Total Current Liabilities 255,955
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Note payable 368,000
Compensated absences, due after one year 6,263
Other postemployment benefits liability 18,628
Net pension liability 1,126,751
Total Noncurrent Liabilities 1,519,642
Total Liabilities 1,775,597
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred pension inflows 179,203
NET POSITION
Invested in capital assets 7,908,560
Unrestricted 1,465,891
Total Net Position $ 9,374,451

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

7



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
SWIMMING POOL ENTERPRISE FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN

OPERATING REVENUES
User fees
Merchandise sales

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits
Services and supplies
Interest expense
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Loss

NONOPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSLS)
Ad valorem taxes
PACT grant revenue
Other income
Interest carnings

Total Nonoperating Revenues
(Expenses)

Change in Net Position
Net Position, July 1

Net Position, June 30

NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

$ 480,315

62,895

543,210

1,294,790
734,622
8,455

453,176
2,491,043

(1,947,833)

2,903,843
13,326
2,280

67,331

2,986,780

1,038,947

8,335,504

$ 9,374,451

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Cash received from users $ 542,363
Cash paid for salaries and benefits (1,294,359)
Cash paid for services and supplies (722,269)
Interest paid (8,455)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (1,482,720)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Ad valorem taxes received 2,898,647
PACT grant revenue 13,326
Other income 2,280
Net Cash Provided (Used) by
Noncapital Financing Activities 2,914,253
CASH FLLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND
RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Principal on note payable (116,000)
Acquisition of capital assets (426,060)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received 67,331
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash 956,804
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, July 1 1,984,345
CASII AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, June 30 $ 2.941.149

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME
(LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED)
BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income
(loss) to net cash provided (used) by
operating activities:

$ (1,947,833)

Depreciation 453,176
(Increase) decrease in:
Accounts receivable (847)
Prepaid expense (7,840)
Inventory 8,601
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable 11,592
Accrued payroll and benefits 431
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (1.482.720)

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these financial statements.

9



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:

The accompanying financial statements of East Fork Swimming Pool District (the “District”) have
been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP), as applied to governmental units. The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is the standard-setting body for governmental accounting and reporting. The GASB
periodically updates its codification of the existing Governmental and Financial Reporting

Standards, which, along with subsequent GASB pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations),
constitutes GAAP for governmental units.

Reporting Entity:

The East Fork Swimming Pool District (the “District”) was created by a majority vote of the
electors of the East Fork Township at a general election on November 4, 1958 and declared
organized by District Judge Richard R. Hanna on November 21, 1958. On September 17, 1977 the
Douglas County Board of Commissioners (the “Commission™) by Resolution No. 77-41 placed the
District in an inactive status and transferred its operation to Parks and Recreation. The
Commission, by Resolution No. 86-16 reactivated the District on April 3, 1986. The District’s
purpose was to construct and operate a swimming pool facility to replace the old facility. The
service area of the District (approximately 624 square miles) is that portion of Douglas County
consisting of the Town of Gardnerville, the East Fork Fire District and the Sierra Forest Fire

Protection District. The District currently maintains and operates the Carson Valley Swim Center
in Minden, Nevada.

The Board of Trustees of the East Fork Swimming Pool District consists of citizens of the District
who are elected for four-year staggered terms.

Basis of Accounting;

The District’s activities are accounted for as an enterprisc fund (proprietary fund type). A fund is
an accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts established to record the financial
position and results of operations of the governmental entity. Activities of enterprise funds
resemble activities of business enterprises; the purpose is to obtain and use economic resources to
meet its operating objectives. The financial statements for the District are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recognized at the time they are earned and expenses are recognized when the related
liabilities are incurred.

A proprietary fund distinguishes operating revenue and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from an exchange transaction such as providing
services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal
ongoing operations. Nonoperating revenues result from nonexchange transactions or ancillary
services.



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

The District applies all applicable GASB pronouncements in accounting and reporting for
proprietary activities, as well as all Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins
(ARB’s) of the Committee of Accounting procedures, (unless those pronouncements conflict with

or contradict GASB pronouncements) issued on or before November 30, 1989 in accounting and
reporting its operations.

Property Taxes:

All real property in the District is assigned a parcel number in accordance with state law, with each
parcel] being subject to physical rcappraisal every five years. A factoring system is used (o adjust
the appraised value during the ycars between physical appraisals. The valuation of the property
and its improvements is computed at 35% of “taxable value” as defined by statute. The amount of
tax levied is developed by multiplying the assessed value by the tax rate applicable to the area in
which the property is located. The maximum tax rate was established in the State Constitution at
$5.00 per hundred dollars of assessed valuation; however, as a result of legislative action the tax
rate was further limited to $3.66 per $100.00 of assessed valuation, except in cases of severe
financial emergency as defined in NRS 354.705.

Taxes on real property are a lien on the property and attach on July 1 (the levy date) of the year for
which the taxes are levied.

Taxes may be paid in four installments payable on the third Monday in August, and the first
Monday in October, January, and March. Penalties are assessed if a taxpayer fails to pay an
installment within ten days of the installment due date. After a two year waiting period, if the taxes
remain unpaid, a tax deed is issued conveying the property to Douglas County with a lien for back
taxes and accumulated charges. Redemption may be made by the owner and such persons as

described by statute by paying all back taxes and accumulated penalties, interest and costs before
sale.

Secured roll property taxes receivable reflect only those taxes receivable from the last two

delinquent roll years. Delinquent taxes from all roll years prior to fiscal year 2020-21 have been
written off.

Budgets and Budgetary Accounting:

The District adheres to the Local Government Budget and Finance Act incorporated within the
statutes of the State of Nevada, which include the following procedures to establish the budgetary
data, which is reflected in these financial statements.

1. On or before April 15, the Board of Trustees of the District files a tentative budget
with the Nevada Department of Taxation.

2. Public hearings on the tentative budget are held in May.

11



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

3. Prior to June 1, at a public hearing, the Board indicates changes, if any, to be made to
the tentative budget and adopts a final budget by the favorable vote of a majority of
the members of the Board. The final budget must then be forwarded to the Nevada
Tax Commission for final hearings and approval.

4. Formal budgetary integration in the financial records is employed to enhance
management control during the year.

5. The budget is adopted on a basis consistent with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), and appropriations lapse at year
end.

6. DBudget amounts may be transferred if amounts do not exceed the original budget.
Budget augmentations in excess of original budgetary amounts may not be made
without prior approval of the Board of Trustees following a scheduled and noticed
public hearing. The budget was not augmented during the year.

7. In accordance with State Statute, actual expenditures may not exceed appropriations
in the fund, except as permitted by law by NRS 354.626.

Cash and Investments:

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows presented for proprietary funds, cash equivalents

are defined as short-term, highly liquid investments, generally with original maturities of three
months or less.

Investments are recorded at fair value.

Pursuant to NRS 355.167 and 355.170, the District may only invest in the following
types of securities:

* United States bonds and debentures maturing within ten (10) years from the date of
purchase.

e Bills and notes of the United States Treasury and obligations of an agency or
instrumentality of the United States of America or a corporation sponsored by the
government maturing within ten (10} years from the date of purchase.

e Negotiable certificates of deposit from commercial banks and insured credit unions
or savings and loan associations.

e Certain securities issued by local governments of the State of Nevada.

e State of Nevada Local Government Investment Pool.



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

e Other securities expressly provided by other statutes, including repurchase
agreements.

e Certain banker’s acceptances, commercial paper issued by a corporation organized
and operating in the United States, and Money Market Mutual Funds.

Capital Assets:
Capital assets are reported in the basic financial statements. Assets are recorded at historical cost
or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are recorded at their estimated fair market value at
the date of donation. The District has set a capitalization policy of $5,000 for all classifications of
capital assets. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset

or materially extend the asset lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and
improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Pool Facility 5-30 Years
Equipment 5-10 Years

Net Position:
In the Statement of Net Position, equity is classified as net assets displayed in two components:
* Invested in capital assets-consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation.

e Unrestricted net assets-All other net assets that do not meet the definition of the above
catlegory.

Inventory:;
Inventory is valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. Inventory in the Statement of
Net Assets includes consumable supplies and materials used for maintenance of the water pool

facility and aquatic merchandise and concession food items held for resale.

Accounts Receivable:

The District makes no provision for user fees receivable. Adequate legal remedies are presently
available to enforce the collection of such taxes as well as user fees, and any amounts which may
ultimately prove uncollectible should not be material in amount.

Compensated Absences:

In proprietary funds, compensated absences are recorded when the liabilities are incurred.



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JTUNE 30, 2023

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Ior purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash equivalents include time deposits, certificates of
deposit, all highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of three months or less and
investments in pool accounts which are available upon request,

Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

NOTE 2 - Stewardship, Compliance and Accountability:

* The District conformed to all significant statutory and code requirements on its

financial administration during the year.

NOTE 3 — Cash and Investments:
As of June 30, 2023, the District had the following investments and maturities:

Investment Maturities (in Years)

Investment Type Fair Value Less than 1 1to5
State of NV Local Government
Investment Pool* h) 2,769,192 $ 2,769,192 $ -
Total Cash (Carrying Amount) 53,683 53,683 -
Total Cash and Investments $ 2,822,875 $ 28223875 $ -

*Average weighted maturity is 113 days.

The District is a voluntary participant in the State of Nevada Local Government Investment Pool
(LGIP), which has regulatory oversight from the Board of Finance of the State of Nevada. The
District’s investment in the LGIP is equal to its original investment plus monthly allocation of
interest income and realized and unrealized gains and losses, which is the same as the value of
pool shares. The District’s investment in LGIP is reported at fair value.

Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS 355.170) sct forth acceptable investments for Nevada local

governments. The District has not adopted a formal investment policy that would further limit its
exposure to certain risks as set forth below:



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

Interest Rate Risk — Interest rate risk is the risk of possible reduction in the value of a
security, especially a bond, resulting from a rise in interest rates. As noted above, the
District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates
beyond those specified in the Statute.

Credit Risk — Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment
will not fulfill its obligation and is a function of the credit quality ratings of investments.
"The State of Nevada Investment Pool is unrated, and as noted above, the District docs not
have a formal investment policy that specifies minimum credit ratings.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits. Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a
bank failure, the District’s deposits may not be returned. The District’s bank deposits are
covered by FDIC insurance and collateralized by the Office of the State
Treasurer/Nevada Collateral Pool.

NOTE 4 — Risk Management:

The District purchases commercial insurance for various risks of loss related to torts, errors and
omissions and theft, damage to, and destruction of assets. Settled claims resulting from these risks
have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE 5 — Subsequent Events:

Management has evaluated subsequent events through November 3, 2023, which is the date these
financial statements were available to be issued and these financial statements have not been
updated for subsequent events occurring after that date.



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

NOTE 6 - Capital Assets:

A summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2023 follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2022 Additions Deletions June 30, 2023
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Land $ 1,353,232 - $ - $ 1,353,232
Construction in progress 36,987 10,704 - 47,691
Total capital assets not
being depreciated 1,390,219 10,704 - 1,400,923
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Pool 13,450,392 183,542 - 13,633,934
Equipment 2,402,719 231,814 - 2,634,533
Total capital assets
being depreciated 15,853,111 415,356 - 16,268,467
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Pool (8,097,074) (406,463) - (8,503,537)
Equipment (1,210,580) (46,713) - (1,257,293)
Total accumulated depreciation (9,307,654) (453,176) - (9,760,830)
Total capital assets, net $ 7,935,676 $ (27,116) $ - $ 7,908,560




EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023
NOTE 7 - Long-term Liabilities:
Balance Balance Due
July 1, June 30, Within
2022 Additions Reductions 2023 One Year
General obligation medium
term bond- Series 21 $ 600,000 3 - $ 116,000 $ 484,000 $ 116,000
Compensated absences 26,750 16,377 19,622 23,505 17,242
Other postemployment
benefits 48,285 - 29,657 18,628 -
Net pension liability 513,449 613,302 - 1,126,751 -
$1,188,484 $ 629,679 $ 165279  §1,652,884 $ 133,242

Debt service requirements on long-term debt at June 30, 2023, are as follows:

Year Ending Total Annual
June 30, Principal Interest Payments

2024 118,000 6,630 124,630

2025 120,000 4,774 124,774

2026 122,000 2,886 124,886

2027 124,000 967 124,967

$ 484,000 § 15,257 $ 499,257

The District purchased a vacant parcel adjacent to the primary facility on November 11, 2021 for
$1,353,232. The District used a combination of existing funds and the issuance of General
Obligation Medium-Term Bond, Series 2021 for the purchase. The bond has a principal amount of
$484,000, payable over 4 remaining years with an interest rate of 1.56% per annuim,

NOTE 8 - Postemployment Health Care Plan:

Plan Descriptions: East Fork Swimming Pool District administers a single-employer defined
benefit healthcare plan. The plan provides medical, vision, dental, and life insurance benefits to
eligible retired East Fork Swimming Pool District’s employees and beneficiaries.

Benefit provisions for the plan are established pursuant to NRS 287.023. NRS 288.150 assigns
the authority to establish benefit provisions to the Board of Trustees. The plan provides
healtheare insurance for eligible retirees and their beneficiaries through East Fork Swimming Pool
District’s group health insurance plan, which covers both active and retired members. Under NRS

17



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

287.023, eligible retirees are able to participate in the plan with blended rates, thereby benefitting
from an implicit subsidy. Retirees are required to pay 100% of their premiums under the plan. As
of June 30, 2023, no retirees were using this plan. The plan does not issue a publicly available
financial report.

I'unding Policy: The District pays the full cost of active employee coverage. Employees pay the
full cost of any optional dependent care coverage and retirees pay the full cost of their personal
and dependent coverage. Claims experience of employees and retirees are pooled when
determining premiums and retiree and active employees pay the same rates resulting in an
“implicit” subsidy of retirees’ cost by active employees. Following is the number of inactive and
active employees eligible for benefits at June 30, 2023:

Inactive employces currently enrolled
Active employees enrolled

N A

A separate plan is not issued for the plan.

Total OPEB Liability: Following is the District’s total OPERB liability that was measured as of
June 30, 2023, and was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2023.

District Plan $18,628

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are
based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and
include the types of benefits in force at the valuation date and the pattern of sharing benefit costs
between the District and the plan members to that point. Projections of benefits for financial
reported purposes do not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding
limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between the employer and plan members in the future.
Actuarial caleulations reflect long-term perspective and employ methods and assumptions that are
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculation.



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

Significant methods and assumptions used in the June 30, 2023 actuarial valuation were as
follows:

Valuation date June 30, 2023

I'unding method Entry Age Normal Cost, closed
group, level percent of pay

Asset valuation method N/A-No OPEB trust established
Discount rate (S & P General Obligation 4.13% as of June 30, 2022
Municipal Bond 20 Year High Grade Index 4.09% as of June 30, 2023

Participants valued

District Plan Only current active employees and
retired participants and covered
spouses are valued. No future
entrants are considered

Actuarial assumptions:

Projected salary increase 3.0%

General inflation rate 2.50%

Healthcare cost trend rates 6.8% in 2024 to 3.9% in 2075
thereafter

Mortality:

The mortality rates were described in the June 30, 2021 actuarial valuation of the
Nevada PERS program as being reasonably representative of mortality experience
as of that measurement date. Non-disabled life rates for Regular employees:
Males: PUB 2010 Tables
Females: PUB 2010 Tables

Mortality Improvement: The mortality rates described above were then adjusted to
to anticipate future mortality improvement by applying MacLeod Watts Scale 2021
from 2010 forward, on a fully generational basis.



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

Changes in Total OPEB Liability

District

Balance at June 30, 2022 $ 48,285
Changes for the year:

Service cost $ 2,720

Interest 2,065

Differences between expected and actual experience (55,420)

Changes of assumptions 21,986

Benefit payments (1,008)

Net Change . (29,657)

Balance at June 30, 2023 $ 18,628

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the discount rate:

The following presents the District’s total OPEB liability calculated using the discount rate of
4.13 percent, as well as what the District’s OPER liability would be if it were calculated using a

discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower (3.13%) or I-percentage-point higher (5.13%) than
the current rate: :

Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
3.13% 4.13% 5.13%
$20,334 $18,628 $17,122

Sensitivity of the total OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend-

The following presents the District’s total OPER liability, as well as what the District’s OPERB
liability would be if it were calculated using a healthcare cost trend rates that 1-percentage-point
lower or 1-percentage-point higher than the current rate:

Current Trend
1% Decrease Rate 1% Increase
5%-4% 6%-5% 7%-6%
$17,488 $18,628 $19,932

20



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related
to OPEB:

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized OPEB expense of $913. At June 30,
2022, the District reported deferred inflows of resources related to OPER from changes in
assumptions and plan experience in the District’s Plan of $37,566. The District will recognize the
deferred resources as follows:

Year Ending June 30, Amount

2023 b (5,193)

2024 (5,193)

2025 (5,193)

2026 (5,257)

2027 (4,631)
Thereafter (12,099)

$ (37,566)

NOTE 9 — Defined Benefit Pension Plan:

Plan Description. All permanent full time employees are provided pensions through the Public
Employees Retirement Plan (PERS). The plan is a multiple employer defined benefit pension
plan administered by the Public Employees Retirement System of the State of Nevada (PERS).
Chapter 286 of the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS) establishes a governing board, appointed by
the Governor that is responsible for managing the System, including arranging for a biennial
actuarial valuation and adoption of actuarial tables and formulas prepared and recommended by
the actuary,

Benefits Provided. Benefits, as required by the Nevada Revised Statutes (NRS or statute), are
determined by the number of years of accredited service at time of retirement and the members’
highest average compensation in any 36 consecutive months with special provisions for members
entering the System on or after January 1, 2010, Benefit payments to which participants or their

beneficiarics may be entitled under the plan include pension benefits, disability benefits, and
survivor benefits.

Monthly benefit allowances for members are computed as 2.5% of average compensation for
cach accredited year of service prior to July 1, 2001. For service earned on and after July 1,
2001, this multiplier is 2.67% of average compensation. For members entering the System on or
after January 1, 2010, there is a 2.5% service time factor and for regular members entering the
system on or after Julyl, 2015, there is a 2.25% factor. The system offers several alternatives to
the unmodified service requirement allowance which, in general, allow the retired employee to
accept a reduced service retirement allowance payable monthly during his or her lifetime and
various optional monthly payments to a named beneficiary after his or her death. Post-retirement
increases are provided by authority of NRS 286.575-.579.

Regular members are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service, at age 60 with
ten years of service, or at any age with thirty years of service. Regular members entering the

21



BAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

System on or after January 1, 2010, are eligible for retirement at age 65 with five years of service,
or age 62 with ten years of service, or any age with thirty years of service.

The normal ceiling limitation on monthly benefit allowances is 75% of average compensation.
However, a member who has an effective date of membership before July 1, 1985, is entitled to a
benefit of up to 90% of average compensation. Regular members become fully vested as to
benefits upon completion of five years of service.

Contributions. The authority for establishing and amending the obligation to make contributions,
and member contribution rates is set by statute. The contribution rates are based on biennial
actuarial valuations and expected to finance the costs of benefits carned by employees during the
year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. New hires, in agencies
which did not elect the Employer-Pay Contribution (EPC) plan prior to July 1, 1983 have the
option of selecting one of two contribution plans. One plan provides for matching employee and
employer contributions, while the other plan provides for employer-pay contributions only.
Under the matching Employee/Employer Contribution plan a member may, upon termination of
service for which contribution is required, withdraw employee contributions which have been
credited to their account. All membership rights and active service credit in the System are
canceled upon withdrawal of contributions from the member’s account. If EPC was elected, the
member cannot convert to the Employee/Employer Contribution plan.

East Fork Swimming Pool District has elected the EPC plan for all employees. The District’s
contributions to the plan totaled $137,294 for the year ended June 30, 2022 of which 50% or
$68,647 is considered employees contributions for reporting purposes. Total contributions were
based on a rate of 25.87% of covered compensation.

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows
of Resources Related to Pensions. At June 30, 2023, the District reported a liability of
$1,126,751 for its proportionate share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was
measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension
liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The District’s proportion of the
net pension liability was based on a projection of the District’s long-term share of contributions to
the pension relative to the projected contributions of all participating employers for the year
ended June 30, 2022. At June 30, 2022, the District’s proportion was .00624% compared to
00563% at June 30, 2021,

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the District recognized pension expense of $38,504. At June
30, 2022, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to pension from the following sources:

22



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2023
Deferred Deferred
Outiflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between expected and actual experience $ 145,896 $ 805
Changes of assumptions 144,739 .
Net difference between projected and actual
earnings on pension plan investments 13,747
Changes in proportion and differences between
actual and proportionate share of contributions 77,408 111,723
District contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 79,011 -
Total $ 460,801 $ 112,528

$79,011 reported as deferred outflows related to pensions resulting from District contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of net pension liability in
the year ended June 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as

follows:
Year Ending June 30, Amount
2024 h (13,119)
2025 (39,042)
2026 (32,353)
2027 (152,035)
2028 (32,714)
Thereafter -

Actuarial Assumption.
determined using the fol

$ (269,263)

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation was
lowing assumptions, applied to all periods including the measurement:

Inflation 2.50%

Payroll growth 5.0%, including inflation
Investment rate of return 1.25%

Productivity pay increases 0.5% Plus

Salary increases
Regular

4.20% 10 9.10%

Consumer Price Index 2.75%

Other assumptions

Same as those used in the June 30
2021 funding actuarial valuation

2

23



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2023

Investments: The Board evaluates and cstablishes expected real rates of return (expected returns,
net of investment expenses and inflation) for each asset class. The Board reviews these capital
market expectations annually, The PERS current long-term geometric expected real rates of
return for cach asset class included in the plan’s investment portfolio as of June 30, 2019 are
included in the following table:

Long-Term

Target Geometric Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return®
Domestic equity 42% 5.50%
International equity 18% 5.50%
Domestic fixed income 28% 0.75%
Private markets 12% 6.65%

*As of June 30, 2022, PERS’ long-term inflation assumption was 2.50%.

Discount rate. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.25% as of June
30, 2022. The projection of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed plan
contributions will be made in amounts consistent with statutory provisions and recognizing the
plan’s current funding policy and cost-sharing mechanism between employers and members. For
this purpose, all contributions that are intended to fund benefits for all plan members and their
beneficiaries are included, except that projected contributions that are intended to fund the service
costs for future plan members and their beneficiaries are not included.

Sensitivity of the District’s proportionate share of the net pension liability to changes in the
discount rate. The following represents the District’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.5% as well as what the District’s proportionate
share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate | percentage
point lower (6.50%) or 1 percentage point higher (8.50%) than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase
6.25% 7.25% 8.25%
District’s net pension liability $1,729,931 $1,126,751 $629,037

24



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
June 30, 2023, 2022 and 2021

East Fork Swimming Pool Health Benefits Plan 2023 2022 2021
Total OPEB Liability
Service cost 3 2,720 $ 32 $ 4,418
Interest 2,065 1,352 988
Benefit payments (1,008) (5,857) (1,138)
Unexpected Changes (33,434) (12,161) 25,393
Net Change in total OPERB Liability (29,657) (12,954) 29,661
Total Liability, July | 48,285 61,239 31,578
Total Liability, June 30 3 18,628 3 48,285 5 61,239
Covered employee payroll $ 438,387 $ 456,156 5 407,986
Total liability as a percentage of
covercd-employee payroll 4.25% 10.59% 15.01%
Notes to Schedule:
Changes to assumptions and other inputs reflect the effects
of changes in the discount rate each period. (The Discount
rate was used to determine the July 1, 2022 values was 4.1 3%)
Applicable discount rates 4.13% 4.09% 2.18%

25



9T

%01°GL %81°CL %G1°TL %0Z'TL %89°6L %ZTIL %1598 %ZI'SL

%ISELT %L1 €8T Wby OFT  %IC8RI %I868L  %ST361 %9G°Z1 1 9%Z0°LST
808°809 0€8°Z9F 856°48¢€ LY0TSY 6T1°0LY 986°L0F 951°96% L8EQEY
€TE9S0° T ¥8S°0IE°T 659°8¥76 89T°158 £3£°268 S18°808 6vF°CIS 1SL9TI°T

%TT600°0  %¥PL600°0  %E1L00°0  %PZ900°0  %FS900°0  %I8500°0  %E9500°0  %¥Z900°0
S10T Ad 910Z Ad L10T Ad

810 Ad 6107 Ad 0T0T Ad 120Z Ad 20T Ad

SIB3 X [BISIY § ISET

"S[qE[IBAR 2W003q Aay) St pajuasard aq [[Im sigak
[BUOIIPPY "(€/9 JO SB PAUILLIASP 219m 9A0qE pajussald sjunowy

Aniqer uotsuad [g101 a1y Jo sSeiuaotad e se uonysod jou Areronpy uejg
[j014ed 2ako]dwa-pa1aA0d $)1 JO sSeiusoiad B

se (Jesse) Ajiqel uorsuad 1au ay Jo a1eys ajeuorodosd sjomasIq
[[044ed 2ako]dura-patoncd s3oLsIC]

(3esse) Lpiqe1] uorsuad 1au a1 Jo areys ajeuonodosd s3oMusIq

(19sse) Aiqer) uoisuad jou syj jo uonodosd sJoLnsic

+SIBO X [BDSI] § 158

Anjiqery uosuad JoN 9U3 Jo axeys ageuontodold s 19LISI(J 24} JO ANPAYIS

£20T ‘0 ANNAC

NOILVIAYOANT AdVINTAWATIANS dTIINOTYH
LOTHLSIA TOOd ONIINAIAS MI04 LSVHA



LT

“I]qB[IBAE 2W003q A2y] SE pajuasald oq [[Im SIBOA
BUOIPPY "(€/9 JO S8 PAUILLISIOP 213M 2A0qE Pajuasald syunoury,,

%I11°S1 %rS L1 %05°€1 %LTTI %9711 %38T'T1 %C67CI %99°C1 [014ed 2adojdwo-paianoo 3o o8eiussiad e se suonnquIuey)

808°8098 0€8°T9V S  8L6PRES  LPOISKS  6TIOLFS  986°L0% S 9ST9SHS  L8E°3Er S [1014ed 29K0]dia paI1ar0d S101ISI(]
= §. .= S z S - g z S 5 g = g - g foustolyep uonngLiue)
806°9F TLSTY 6S6°1¢ TLYSS 9TLFS 101°0¢ 1€6°8S L¥9789  UONNQLYUOD poUTULIRIEP A[[BENIOE 91} 0 UCHR[DL UL SUCIINGLIUOT
806°9% § TLST8 8§ 6S6'IS §  TL¥SS §  9TLWS § [01°0S § 16685 § _L¥9°89 § uonnquuod ra4ojdws paJnbal £jLiojnyeig
S10T Ad 910Z A LTOT Ad 810T Ad 610T Ad 0Z0T Ad 1207 Ad 7207 Ad

#STB9 A [BOSI] § IS

SUONNQLIIUO)) §,1IL1SIQ Y} JO ANPAYDS

£207 ‘0€ ANNL
NOILVIARIOJANI AAVININATAdNS aTAINOTA
LOTHLSIA TOOd INIININIMS MH0J 1SvA



EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT

SWIMMING POOL ENTERPRISE FUND

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN
NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

(WITH COMPARATIVE ACTUAL AMOUNTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022)

OPERATING REVENUES
User fees
Merchandise sales

Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits
Services and supplies
Interest expense
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses
Operating Income (Loss)
NONOPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES)
Ad valorem taxes
PACT grant revenue
Other income

Interest earnings

Total Nonoperating Revenues
(Expenses)

Change in Net Position
Net Position, July 1

Net Position, June 30

28

$ 9,374,451

FINAL
BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE 2022
§ 561,775 % 480315  §  (B1,460) § 486,507
67,350 62,895 (4,455) 66,618
629,125 543,210 (85,915) 553,125
1,448,722 1,294,790 153,932 1,151,284
647,482 734,622 (87,140) 649,697
: 8,455 (8,455) -
515,088 453,176 61,912 389,768
2,611,292 2,491,043 120,249 2,190,749
(1,982,167) (1,947,833) 34,334 (1,637,624)
2,664,694 2,903,843 239,149 2,667,581
10,000 13,326 3,326 37,904
g 2,280 2,280 -
4,395 67,331 62,936 4,076
2,679,089 2,986,780 307,691 2,709,561
$ 696,922 1,038,947  § 342,025 1,071,937
8,335,504 7,263,567

_$8335,504_



ARRIGHI, BLAKE
& ASSOCIATES, LLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over F inancial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed
In Accordance with Government A uditing Standards

To the Board of Trustees of
East Fork Swimming Pool District

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in the Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the business-type
activity of East Fork Swimming Pool District (the “District”) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023,
and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the East Fork Swimming
Pool District’s basic financial statement and have issued our report thereon dated November 3, 2022,

Internal Control over Financial Reporting:

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered East Fork Swimming
Pool District’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s

internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A
significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less

severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.,

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in the internal control that might be material
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

29



Compliance and Other Matters:

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations
and contracts, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was
not an objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report:

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Yerington, Nevada A ) - L _
November 3, 2023 M L 'E \(t ASSDQ;—‘CS’ LLc-

30



ARRIGHI, BLAKE
& ASSOCIATES, LLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Report on Nevada Revised Statute 354.6241

To the Honorable Board of Trustees of
East Fork Swimming Pool District

We have reviewed the assertion provided by management in accordance with Nevada Revised Statute
354.624(5)(a):

® The identified fund is being used expressly for the purpose for which it was created.

¢ The fund is administered in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

The sources of revenues available for the fund are as noted in the financial statements.

The fund conformed to significant statutory and regulatory constraints on its financial
administration during the year ended June 30,2023,

The net position of the fund is as noted in the financial statements.
This assertion is the responsibility of the management of East Fork Swimming Pool District.
Our review was conducted in accordance with attestation standards established by the American Institute

of Certified Public Accountants. A review is substantially less in scope than an examination, the

objective of which is the expression of an opinion on the assertion. Accordingly, we do not express such
an opinion.

Based on our review, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe that the assertion provided
by management referred to above is not fairly stated in all material respects.

Yerington, Nevada A!‘NBL\. y Elﬂ e « ASSBC tetes X 5
November 3, 2023

31




AUDITOR’S COMMENTS

STATUTE COMPLIANCE

The required disclosure on compliance with Nevada Revised Statutes and the Nevada Administrative
Code is contained in Note 2 to the financial statements,

There are no specific recommendations made in the audit report for the current year.

PRIOR YEAR STATUTE COMPLIANCE

The District conformed to all significant statutory constraints on its financial administration during the
year ended June 30, 2022.

PRIOR YEAR RECOMMENDATIONS

There were no prior year recommendations to be implemented during the 2022-2023 fiscal year,

32




EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
AGENDA ACTION SHEET
Agenda Item #3
Title: Discussion Only. Discussion and update on the Capital Improvement Plan

ongoing and possible future projects.

Background: East Fork Swimming Pool District contracted with Aquatic Design Group
to complete an overall evaluation of the Carson Valley Swim Center’s
equipment. The capital improvement and maintenance priority list is a
combination of that report along with the center’s Director, Maintenance
Supervisor and Project Manager’s recommendations.

Funding: NA

Recommended Discussion only

Motion:

Trustee Action: Approved
Denied
No Action

Other




ESYISLT S S|qejleny spung uonanaisuo) Sujuleway
699 VLY T
6Y9°L2L'T vSS'SLLT 13bpng [pydo) vz, /¢,
000°0¢ 0000€ 000°0€ 8ue\ 13ssy 1oy Auagunuoy () Adussunuoy
BEE'B0T ¥55°28¢ 755782 IsAjeuy anasay (3411 ePE ‘wo0s dwnd y10m adidas uom
weas 3pl|s ‘|apowas epe ‘pieoq Buinip ‘|lemyd01) uelq Suepy 19ssy
705’6 000°€T 000°€T Auno) sejgnog (4BnojInJa 13035 ¥z,-£7,) Juawageuepy 1301y
£VT'8 0S8'¥9T SSL'TTT puelen/y1d (€2,-zz) uonesoisay yooy
000°0S 000°0S 000°0S Auno) sei8nog (34L) yied yseids
v8S'891'T  StT'/8T'T SYZ/8TT JSL/wniua|q uoisuedx3 apisise]
a|qehed "sywy asuadxg 199png Auedwoy spalo.d vzoz/c€20e
Sululeway Jiunowy vzoe/czoe
Penuo)
zer9ge’s S 1004 JUSWISIAU| JUBWUIBAOD) [BIOT

Isig 18q0300

*JO S 9|qe|leAy spung uo1INIISUO)

v20z/€20z 183, |edsiy
193png |eyde)
191u3d) WIMms As|jep uos.ier




EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT

BOARD OF TRUSTEES
AGENDA ACTION SHEET
Agenda Item #4
Title: For Possible Action. Discussion and possible action to approve design services

contract with TSK Architects for the Maintenance Storage Building Project in the
amount of $39,840.

Background: East Fork Swimming Pool District identified in their Capital Improvement
plan the need for more secured storage in the maintenance yard to protect
the assets and allow for more proper chemical storage.

Funding: NA
Recommended
Motion: Move to approve design services contract with TSK Architects for the

Maintenance Storage Building Project in the amount of $39,840.

Trustee Action: Approved
Denied
No Action
__ Other




CONTRACT FOR SERVICES OF INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

A CONTRACT BETWEEN
EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT
1600 STATE ROUTE 88
MINDEN NV 89423
(“DISTRICT”)

AND

TSK ARCHITECTS

225 SOUTH ARLINGTON AVENUE, SUITE B
RENONYV 89502
(“CONTRACTOR™)

WHEREAS, East Fork Swimming Pool District is a political subdivision of the State of Nevada,
from time to time requires the services of independent contractors; and

WHEREAS, it is deemed that the personal services of Contractor herein specified are both
necessary and desirable and in the best interests of » East Fork Swimming Pool District; and

WHEREAS, Contractor represents that he is duly qualified, equipped, staffed, ready, willing and
able to perform and render the personal services hereinafter described;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the agreements herein made, the parties mutually agree as follows:

1. EFFECTIVE DATE AND TERM OF CONTRACT. This contract shall not become effective until
and unless approved by both parties,

2. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR STATUS. The parties agree that Contractor shall have the status
of an independent contractor and that this contract, by explicit agreement of the parties, incorporates and
applies the provisions of NRS 284.713, as necessarily adapted, to the parties, including that Contractor is
not a County employee and that

There shall be no:

(1) Withholding of income taxes by the District:

(2) Industrial insurance coverage provided by the District;

(3) Participation in group insurance plans which may be available to employees of the District;

(4) Participation or contributions by either the independent contractor or the District to the public

employees retirement system:

(5) Accumulation of vacation leave or sick leave;

(6) Unemployment compensation coverage provided by the District if the

requirements of NRS 612.085 for independent contractors are met.



3. INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE.

A. Unless the Contractor complies with 1 B below, Contractor further agrees, as a
precondition to the performance of any work under this contract and as a precondition to any obligation of
the District to make any payment under this contract, to provide the District with a work certificate and/or
a certificate issued by a qualified insurer in accordance with NRS § 616B.627. Contractor also agrees,
prior to commencing any work under the contract, to complete and to provide the following written
request to the insurer;

TSK ARCHITECT has entered into a contract with EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT

to perform work from at Carson Valley Swim Center and requests that the State Industrial Insurance
System provide to EAST FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT 1) a certificate of coverage issued pursuant to
NRS § 616B.627 and 2) notice of any lapse in coverage or nonpayment of coverage that the contractor is
required to maintain. The certificate and notice should be mailed to:

Carson Valley Swim Center
1600 State Route 88
Minden, Nevada 89423

Contractor agrees to maintain required workers compensation coverage throughout the
entire term of the contract. If contractor does not maintain coverage throughout the entire term of the
contract, contractor agrees that District may, at any time the coverage is not maintained by contractor,
order the contractor to stop work, suspend the contract, or terminate the contract. For each six month
period this contract is in effect, contractor agrees, prior to the expiration of the six month period, to
provide another written request to the insurer for the provision of a certificate and notice of lapse in or
nonpayment of coverage. If contractor does not make the request or does not provide the certificate before
the expiration of the six month period, contractor agrees that District may order the contractor to stop
work, suspend the contract, or terminate the contract.

B. Contractor may, in lieu of furnishing a certificate of an insurer, provide an affidavit
indicating that he is a sole proprietor and that:

1. In accordance with the provisions of NRS 616B.659, has not elected to be
included within the terms, conditions and provisions of chapters 616A to 616D, inclusive,
of NRS; and

2. Is otherwise in compliance with those terms, conditions and provisions.

4. SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED. The parties agree that the personal services to be performed
by Contractor are outlined in the TSK ARCHITECTS FEE PROPOSAL DATED 17 OCTOBER, 2023.The
Proposal attached hereto as Exhibit 1 to perform SD-DD-CD-CD Desi gn Services at Carson Valley Swim
Center for the Storage Building East Side Expansion Project.

5. PAYMENT FOR SERVICES. Contractor agrees to provide the professional services set forth in
14 at a cost not to exceed $39.840.00. Unless Contractor has received a written exemption
from the District, Contractor shall be paid in full only upon completion of all of the Services
set forth in § 4 and after a satisfactory final inspection of the work is completed by EAST
FORK SWIMMING POOL DISTRICT



6. NON APPROPRIATION. All payments under this contract are contingent upon the avai lability
to the District of the necessary funds. In accordance with NRS § 354.626 and any other applicable
provision of law, the financial obligations under this contract between the parties shall not exceed those
monies appropriated and approved by the District for this contract for the then current fiscal year under
the Local Government Budget Act. This contract shall terminate and the District’s obligations under it
shall be extinguished if the District fails to appropriate monies.

Nothing in this contract shall be construed to provide Contractor with a right of payment over any
other entity. Any funds obligated by the District under this contract that are not paid to Contractor shall
automatically revert to the District’s discretionary control upon the completion, termination, or
cancellation of the agreement. The District shall not have any obligation to re-award or to provide, in any
manner, the unexpended funds to Contractor. Contractor shall have no claim of any sort to the
unexpended funds.

7. CONSTRUCTION OF CONTRACT. This agreement shall be construed and interpreted
according to the laws of the State of Nevada. Any dispute regarding this agreement shall be
resolved by binding arbitration, with an arbiter selected from a list maintained by the Nevada
Supreme Court of senior/retired district court judges, with both parties to pay their own attorney
fees. The party defending the action shall be entitled to select the arbiter from the list. There
shall be no presumption for or against the drafter in interpreting or enforcing this Agreement.

8. COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS. Contractor shall fully and completely comply with
all applicable local, state and federal laws, regulations, orders, or requirements of any sort in carrying out
the obligations of this contract, including, but not limited to. all federal, state, and local accounting
procedures and requirements and all immigration and naturalization laws.

9. ASSIGNMENT. Contractor shall neither assign, transfer nor delegate any rights, obligations or
duties under this contract without the prior written consent of the District.

10. DISTRICT INSPECTION. The books, records, documents and accounting procedures and
practices of Contractor related to this contract shall be subject to inspection, examination and audit by the
District, including, but not limited to, the contracting agency, and, if applicable, the Comptroller General
of the United States, or any authorized representative of those entities.

11. DISPOSITION OF CONTRACT MATERIALS. Any books, reports, studies, photographs,
negatives or other documents, data, drawings or other materials prepared by or supplied to Contractor in
the performance of its obligations under this contract shall be the exclusive property of the District and all
such materials shall be remitted and delivered, at Contractor's expense. by Contractor to the District upon
completion, termination or cancellation of this contract. Alternatively, if the District provides its written
approval to Contractor, any books, reports, studies, photographs, negatives or other documents, data,
drawings or other materials prepared by or supplied to Contractor in the performance of its obligations
under this contract must be retained by Contractor for a minimum of six years after final payment is made
and all other pending matters are closed. I, at any time during the retention period, the District, in
writing, requests any or all of the materials, then Contractor shall promptly remit and deliver the
materials, at Contractor's expense, to the District. Unless the District has requested remittance and
delivery by Contractor of the items, Contractor shall not use, willingly allow or cause to have such



materials used for any purpose other than the performance of Contractor's obligations under this contract
without the prior written consent of the District.

12. PUBLIC RECORDS LAW. Contractor expressly agrees that all documents ever submitted,
filed, or deposited with the District by Contractor, unless designated as confidential by a specific statue of
the State of Nevada, shall be treated as public records pursuant to NRS Chapter 239 and shall be available
for inspection and copying by any person, as defined in NRS 0.039, or any governmental entity.
Contractor expressly and indefinitely waives all of its ri ghts to bring, including but not limited to, by way
complaint, interpleader, intervention, or any third party practice, any claims, demands, suits, actions,
Jjudgments, or executions, for damages or any other relief, in any administrative or judicial forum, against
the District or any of its officers or employees, in either their official or individual capacity, for violations
of or infringement of the copyright laws of the United States or of any other nation.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Contractor agrees to indemnify and save and hold the District, its agents
and employees harmless from any and all claims, causes of action or liability arising from the
performance of this contract by Contractor or Contractor's agents or employees.

14. MODIFICATION OF CONTRACT. This contract constitutes the entire contract between the
parties and may only be modified by a written amendment signed by the parties.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this contract to be signed and intend to
be legally bound thereby.

% : 7& — 11/1/2023

KEVIN KEMNER, PRINCIPLE (Date)
TSK ARCHITECTS

Shannon Harris, Director (Date)
East Fork Swimming Pool District



tsk

October 17, 2023

225 south arlington avenue, suite a, reno | nevada 89501

Shannon Harris

Carson Valley Swim Center Director
1600 NV-88

Minden, NV 89423

P. 775.392.4062

E. director@cvswim.com

Scott McCullough
Project Manager

E. smccullough@douglasnv.us

RE: Carson Valley Swim Center
East Lobby Expansion
Additional Service Request #1 (Storage Building)

Dear Shannon and Scott,

This Task Order Addendum is to add a 50’ x 25’ Storage Room Building adjacent to the existing maintenance
building (approx. 10’ separation). Our understanding is this would be a masonry building with a gable roof,
wood trusses and metal roofing to match existing that would tie into the existing maintenance building roof to
from a breezeway. The top of masonry would be 11'-4” (to match maintenance building). A 16’ wide x 8 h
sectional garage door, 2 exterior doors and 1 interior door would be provided. An interior wood framed wall
would divide the interior into two approx. 25’ x 25’ spaces. A drywall ceiling would be attached to the bottom
side of trusses. Masonry walls would be uninsulated. The attic space would be insulated with batt insulation.
Heating would be by natural gas fired unit heaters. Air-conditioning is not a part of our scope. Electrical
outlets would be provided to satisfy applicable codes. Data outlets are not a part of our scope.

ASR-2.0 Proposed Fee:

$18,240 TSK Architects
$7,500 Nelson Wilcox Structural Engineers
$2,800 CR Engineering
$11.300 PK Electrical
$39,840 Total
Contract Summary
$55,537 Original A/E Contract Amount
$39.840 ASR -01 (Storage Building)

$95,377 Total revised Contract Amount




tsk

ACCEPTED AND AGREED: TSK Architects is hereby authorized to proceed with this scope of work.
for individual project phases which is approved by Carson Valley Swim Center.

225 south arlington avenue, suite a, reno | nevada 89501

CVSC Signatory Date

Respectfully,

Kevin Kemner, Reno Office Director




QQQQQ
............

................

1
FLIIUMONY 1L LI 35040

T ]

|




CVSC November 2023 Director’s Report

User Attendance: See board binder documents.
* Oct 2022 Attendance was 8,532. Oct 2023 Attendance was 8,057 (See attached docs)

Programming, Staffing and Training:

e Sharon (Chair), Sarah and Shannon attended the NRPA National Conference in Dallas, TX

® Special events were well received and went great — Pumpkin Patch, Haunted Pool Party — The Team was very
successful!

* Maintenance Department Part-time position was filled by one of the current lifeguards.

* Leadership Team (Director and Supervisors) meet monthly to plan and discuss CVSC programming & staffing.

e Part-time employee evaluations have been completed.

¢ Monthly In-Service Training/Meeting was conducted by all supervisors.

® Session, Drop-In and Private swim and dive lessons are combined numbers and classes have been successful (see
attached #'s)

® Water Aerobics Class attendance is staying steady at 35+ participants in the morning classes. Evening classes are
smaller but well likes and attended.

Marketing and Public Relations:

® The Swim Center has hung their “Best of” 1% place banner in the lobby.

® Shannon was the MC for the Chamber Community Recognition Awards.

® Shannon and Paul attended the NRPS meeting online.

* Shannon and Sarah were interviewed for the “Best in Aquatics” Award that will be presented at the AOAP National
Conference to be held in Reno, NV.

¢ Shannon and Sharon T. (Admin Asst.) attended the Annual Pool Pact HR Conference in Reno, NV.

e Shannon attended (online) the Executive and General NRPS Board Meetings.

* Social media exposure, information sharing and flyers: Facebook & Instagram updates (Sarah & Catherine).

* Website updates (Justin, Paul, Sharon), Google Business updates (Shannon), Alignable updates (Shannon)

® Publications: Carson Valley Business Directory, Getaway Reno/Tahoe Area, Best of CV, Almanac, Record Courier.

* CGl Marketing Group continues to do a good job managing our online reputation with Google, Yelp (Shannon)

® Phone Message updates (Sherrie)

 Water Aerobics Coordinator (Deanna) is emailing staff and patrons on our internal water aerobics list to keep up-to-
date on schedule or procedure changes.

Employee Recognition:
«Employee of the Month: September Alicia Suttor, Cashier. Alicia has developed a strong relationship with the
patrons and has done a great job enforcing rules, policies and procedures. She has been reliable and never sits still.

She is consistent in her workload and accomplished whatever has been assigned to her. She also has added paintings
and decorations to the front office.

Maintenance Updates:
* Roof coating project has been completed. Walk thru is scheduled for November 8", 2023. Retention is being held.
Rockwall has been delivered and is being anchored to the deck with inserts.
e Dive stand pad has been manufactured and shipped.
New ADA lift has been delivered and installed.
Daily, weekly, monthly and annual maintenance projects and asset management are being completed... excel
document updated by Maintenance Supervisor and Director regularly
* Updating and improving the data information in Reserve Analyst (Asset Management Program).

Monthly Financial: See board binder documents.

Correspondence: See board binder documents (if applicable).



East Fork Swim Pool District
Attendance Report Fiscal Year: 2022-2023

July Aug | Sept | Oct Nov | Dec Jan Feb [ Mar | Apr May | Jun Total
Attendance 22265 15621 9610 8532 56028
Attendance:
Lessons 1498| 650| 246| 461 2855
Swim Team 1869| 1440 1760| 1680 6749
Mem/Pass Visits 3893| 3968| 3118/ 3052 14031
DHS Aquatics 0 125 588 434 1147
DHS Swim/Dive 0 0 0 0 0
Drop-In Visits| 15005| 9438 3898| 2905 31246
User Fees| 72,511 58,663|28,952|24,577 $184,703
East Fork Swim Pool District
Attendance Report Fiscal Year: 2023-2024
July Aug | Sept | Oct | Nov | Dec | Jan Feb | Mar | Apr | May | Jun Total
Attendance 22813 14787| 8898| 8057 0 0 0 0 0 54555
Attendance:
Lessons 1703] 786/ 548| 415 3452
Swim Team 1000| 1100/ 1050 1100 4250
Mem/Pass Visits 3964| 3914| 3210 3216 14304
DHS Aquatics 0 172 447 318 937
DHS Swim/Dive 0 0 0 0 0
Drop-In Visits| 16146| 8815| 3643 3008 31612
User Fees| 100,273|70,785|35,787[31,700 $238,545




East Fork Swim Pool District
Attendance Report Fiscal Year: 2022-2023

July Aug | Sept | Oct | Nov | Dec Jan Feb | Mar | Apr May | Jun Total
Attendance 22265( 15621| 9610/ 8532 6962| 6803| 7138| 7915 9485| 11261| 9632 16649 131873
Attendance:
Lessons 1498 650 246 461 392 197 356 429 543 577 576| 1045 6970
Swim Team 1869| 1440| 1760 1680 1300| 1320| 1320/ 1200 1320] 1200 1020 1000 16429
Mem/Pass Visits 3893| 3968| 3118/ 3052 2477| 2523| 2370 2331 2907 3078| 2910| 3647 36274
DHS Aquatics 0 125 588 434 620 272 558 464 682 540 460 270 5013
DHS Swim/Dive 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 400 396 352 220 0 1368
Drop-In Visits| 15005 9438 3898| 2905| 2173| 2491 2534| 3091| 3637| 5514 4446| 10687 65819
User Fees| 72,511 58,663/28,952|24,577 21,532)22,332|31,606 30,146/31,028|35,516 45,732|76,502| $479,097

East Fork Swim Pool District
Attendance Report Fiscal Year: 2023-2024

July Aug | Sept | Oct | Nov | Dec Jan Feb | Mar | Apr May | Jun Total

Attendance 22813| 14787 8898 8057 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 54555
Attendance:

Lessons 1703| 786| 548| 415 3452

Swim Team 1000] 1100 1050 1100 4250

Mem/Pass Visits 3964 3914| 3210 3216 14304

DHS Aquatics 0 172 447 318 937

DHS Swim/Dive 0 0 0 0 0

Drop-In Visits| 16146| 8815 3643| 3008 31612

User Fees| 100,273(70,785 35,787(31,700 $238,545




East Fork Swim Pool District

Lifeguard Activity Report, Fiscal Year: '22-'23

July | Aug|Sept| Oct | Nov| Dec| Jan | Feb |Mar|April May |June| Total
Swim Rescues 4 0 1 2 1 2 0 0 3 4 1 9 27
Minor First Aid 29| 16 8 5 0 1 1 5 3 9 8| 24| 109
Major First Aid o o0 of o Of o of 1 o 0 o o 1
Resuscitations of o o o 0 ofl 0o of o 0 of 0 0
Near Drownings O o o o 0 0 0ol 0 o0 0 of 0 0
Drownings o o0 0f O 0] 0] o o o 0 of o0 0
Major First Aid Description:
Backboard of o of o0 0 o0 o o o 0 of o 0
911 Calls 0f o of o o0 o o 1 o 0 0 o 1
Ambulance Transport 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 i 0 0 of o 1
Oxygen uses 1 2 1 1 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 0 7
East Fork Swim Pool District
Lifeguard Activity Report, Fiscal Year: '23-'24

July | Aug|Sept| Oct | Nov | Dec| Jan | Feb [Mar April| May|June | Total
Swim Rescues 3 1 2 2 8
Minor First Aid 44| 18 5 7 74
Major First Aid of o 0f o 0
Resuscitations 0 0 0 0 0
Near Drownings 0 0 0 0 0
Drownings 0 0 0 0 0
Major First Aid Description:
Backboard of o0 o o 0
911 Calls o o of o 0
Ambulance Transport 0 0 of o 0
Oxygen uses o o 0 0 0|




User Attendance Breakdown

Summary Oct 2023 July 1, 2023 thru Oct 31, 2023
Drop-Ins | Passes Total % Drop-Ins | Passes Total %

Senior 304 2,549 2,853 46% 2,450 11,185 13,635 30%
Adult 847 330 1,177 19% 9,480 1,364 10,844 24%
Youth 1,625 20 1,645 26% 17,918 315 18,233 40%
Complimentary 25 - 25 0% 501 - 501 1%
Family 43 a7 100 2% 558 248 806 2%
Disabled 27 164 191 3% 182 732 914 2%
Therapy 100 - 100 2% 339 - 339 1%
Other 37 96 133 2% 184 460 644 1%

3,008 3,216 6,224 100% 31,612 14,304 45,916 100%




A Carson Valley Chamber of Commerce
g 2 Community Recognition Awards

‘,J

Wi S car i Ul Carsons Vil

NOVEMBER

AT AR .
«‘ e — s ;?:-‘t' T —

sy 04 rsorm

2023

Carson Valley Inn & Casino
1627 U.S. Hwy 395 N, Minden, NV

Dinner
No-Host Reception

S95 Per Guest

'Carson Valley Formal' Attire

e s ~
> 5 A r———

RSVP by October 27th
775-782-8144

Chamber

of Commerce carsonvalleynv.org




Thank you for making a difference in
the lives of the MES families. Our
Health Fair was a SUCCESS thanks to
you and your team! We look forward

to workir g with you in the future.

“‘6 ,
M‘W



Minden %f/zggé{/y/ Oluts

est. 1910

x 543 Minden, NV 89423

Weu CNO&\\h\\fj S Cendeg ,

e s e e Cpyeticle.
V< Gererac Qo B\

We {dise ' QWY el i Yo
cﬂ‘\f"\um}j oF %\Q C'M%

S "Qﬁc\kj.

Sederton)



C/Z/M
%%%% e z::

i L7 C y 76' /E«?CQ.LM e
a ﬂ/c;.d__éfz{(i@ @ Md,w,-,é( v o




